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FINANCIAL SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Board of Commissioners
Technical College of the Lowcountry
Beaufort, South Carolina
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business type activities of the Technical
College of the Lowcountry as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Technical College of the Lowcountry’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business type activities of the Technical College of the Lowcountry as
of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, historical pension information, and historical other post-employment benefit
information on pages 3-10 and 48-51 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Technical College of the Lowcountry’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required
by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic
financial statements.
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 27,
2019, on our consideration of the Technical College of the Lowcountry’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Technical College of the Lowcountry’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Technical College of the Lowcountry’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Crowley Wechsler & Associates LLC
Beaufort, South Carolina

September 27, 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
This section of Technical College of the Lowcountry’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
presents management’s discussion and analysis of the College’s financial performance during the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018. As this Management’s Discussion and Analysis is
designed to focus on current activities, resulting change and currently known facts, it should be read in
conjunction with the Independent Auditors’ Report, the College’s basic financial statements and the
accompanying notes. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this information rests with
the College.
Overview of the Financial Statements
The financial statements for the Technical College of the Lowcountry (TCL) have been prepared in
accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local
Governments, Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis – for Colleges and Universities, and Statement No. 39 relating to component units.
The College is engaged only in Business-Type activities (BTA) that are financed in part by fees charged
to students for educational services. Accordingly, college financial activities are reported using three
financial statements required for proprietary funds: the Statement of Net Position; the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and the Statement of Cash Flows.
The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the College at the end of the fiscal year
and requires classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current categories. The
College’s net position is the difference between total assets and deferred outflows and the total
liabilities and deferred inflows, and is one indicator of whether the overall financial condition has
improved or deteriorated during the year. This statement is designed to present a snapshot of the
College’s financial condition at the end of the fiscal year. It should be noted that effective for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2018, the College adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The College will now report its
proportionate share of the State of South Carolina’s net OPEB liability. Changes in net OPEB liability
not included in pension expense are reported as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of
resources. Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date of the net pension liability are
reported as deferred outflows of resources.
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents revenues earned and
expenses incurred during the year. Revenues and expenses are classified as either operating or nonoperating. Expenses are reported by natural classification. This statement reflects the College’s
dependence on state funding, by the resulting operating loss.
The final statement presented is the Statement of Cash Flows, which presents detailed information
about the cash activity of the College during the year. This statement further emphasizes the College’s
dependence on state and county appropriations with the separation of cash flows between operating and
non-operating.
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Financial Highlights


The liabilities and deferred inflows of the Technical College of the Lowcountry
exceeded its total assets and deferred outflows at June 30, 2019 by $5.3 million
(deficit).



The College’s net position has decreased $0.9 million from the prior fiscal year to ($5.3
million).



The College’s total liabilities increased by $1.8 million from the prior year due to
increases in unearned revenues.



The College experienced a net operating loss of $12 million as reported in the statement
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. The operating loss was offset
by non-operating revenues from federal grants as well as state and local appropriations
of $10.6 million, and State Capital funding of $0.5 million.



Operating revenues increased by $0.9 million for the year due to increases in tuition
and fees and state grant revenues.

Financial Analysis of the College as a Whole
The schedule that follows is a condensed version of the College’s assets, liabilities and net assets and
is prepared from the Statement of Net Position.
Net Position as of June 30, 2019
With Comparative Totals for 2018
(In millions)

2019
Current Assets
Non-current Assets
Total Assets

$

Deferred Outflow of Resources

17.1
17.3
34.4

2018
$

16.0
17.1
33.1

3.1

3.5

6.1
35.1
41.2

4.6
34.8
39.4

Deferred Inflow of Resources

1.6

1.6

Net Position
Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Total Net Position

16.6
(21.9)
$ (5.3)

Current Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
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16.3
(20.7)
$ (4.4)

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of an entity’s financial position. The College’s
net assets and deferred outflows was surpassed by its liabilities and deferred inflows by $5.3 million at
the close of the most recent fiscal year and reflects a 21% decrease from the prior year.
Graphical representations of the basic components of the College’s financial condition on June 30, 2019
with comparisons to the prior year are included below.

$Millions

Assets, Liabilities and Deferred Outflows/Inflows by Year
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Deferred Outflows
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Deferred Inflows

Net Position

Summary of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
with Comparative Totals for June 30, 2018
(In millions)
The schedule that follows is a summary of the College’s operating results for the fiscal year.

2019
Operating Revenue
Tuition and Fees
Grants and Contracts
Auxiliary
Other
Total Operating Revenue

$

Less Operating Expenses
Net Operating Loss
Non-Operating Revenue
Federal Grants and Contracts
State Appropriations
Local Appropriations
Total Non-operating Revenue
Income (Loss) before Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains (Losses)
Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains or (Losses)
Capital Gifts, Grants and Contracts
Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year
Prior period Restatement
Net Position, End of Year
Total Revenues

6.0
3.2
0.9
0.6
10.7

2018
$

5.5
2.8
1.0
0.5
9.8

22.7
(12.0)

23.0
(13.2)

3.7
4.6
2.3

4.2
6.3
2.2

10.6
(1.4)

12.7
(0.5)

0.5

0.4

$

(0.9)
(4.4)
(5.3)

(0.1)
10.3
(14.6)
$ (4.4)

$

21.8

$

22.9

A large portion of the revenue included in the Grants and Contracts category represents student
financial assistance, which is used to pay tuition and fees for students to attend the College. An
approximation of tuition and fees paid from this source of funds has been recognized as a reduction of
tuition and fees in the form of scholarships allowances in order to eliminate duplication of revenue.
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Graphical representations of the of the College’s revenue and expense data for the year ended June 30,
2019 are included below.

2019 Operating Revenues
8%
6%
56%

30%

Tuition & Fees
Grants & Contracts
Auxiliary
Other

2019 Operating Expenses
5%
43%

22%

Salaries
Benefits
Scholarships
Utilities

2%

Supplies & Services
Depreciation

11%
17%
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7
6
$Millions

5
4

2019

3

2018

2
1
0
State

Local

Grants

Personnel costs of $13.7 million accounted for 60% of the College’s operating expenses and reflect a
4% decrease from the prior year. Supplies and other services make up the second largest classification,
accounting for 21.9% of operating expenses. Operating expenses in total decreased approximately
$213,000 from last year’s values. Note 16 in the accompanying notes to the financial statements reports
operating expenses by functional classification.
The Statement of Cash Flows identifies the sources and uses of cash by the major categories: operating,
non-capital financing, capital financing and investing activities.
The statement that follows represents a condensed version of Statement of Cash Flows.
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019
With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2018
(In millions)

2019
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Activities
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents- Beginning of the Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents- End of the Year

$ (10.2)
11.3
0.1
0.1
1.3
8.0
$
9.3

2018
$

$

(7.7)
11.7
(1.3)
0.1
2.8
5.2
8.0

Cash and cash equivalents increased by $1.3 million. Cash provided from non-capital financing
activities in the amount of $11.3 million, consisting primarily of federal grants and state and local
appropriations, was used to fund operating activities. The College’s investments consist primarily of
short-term certificates of deposit. The College completed the fiscal year with a cash and cash equivalent
balance of $9.3 million.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration
The capital assets net of depreciation increased by $0.2 million for the year. This increase reflects the
difference between depreciation charges to existing capital assets and investment in new capital in the
fiscal year.
The capital assets are summarized in the table that follows:
Capital Assets, Net
June 30, 2019 with Comparative Totals for June 30, 2018
(In millions)

2019
Capital Assets
Construction in Progress
Land and Improvements
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Other Assets
Total Capital Assets
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Net Capital Assets

$

$

0.3
7.6
24.6
2.4
0.6
35.5
(18.2)
17.3

2018
$

$

0.2
7.1
24.2
2.4
0.5
34.4
(17.3)
17.1

Economic Factors
Ideally, the College’s funding would come in approximately equal measure from three sources: state
allocations, local (county) funding and tuition revenue. This has not been the case for many years.
State and county funding fall considerably below those thresholds, leaving the balance to be made up
in tuition revenue. TCL’s state appropriations of $4.6 million made up 21.3% of total revenues for the
year, while local appropriations were $2.3 million, or 10.5% of the total. Although state appropriations
decreased in the current year, they have been trending up, due to two factors: overall higher education
appropriations have grown at the state level, and changes to the funding formula that dictates TCL’s
share of that appropriation. A number of special, non-recurring appropriations drove up the state
percentage last year. This expected growth in appropriations, while welcome, remains relatively minor
in the long term. Tuition revenues resulting from student enrollment will continue to be critical to the
institution’s financial stability.
Enrollment was flat in Academic Year 18-19. It appears enrollment will trend slightly negative in the
upcoming year. If this forecast holds, the College’s enrollment performance will be consistent with
that experienced by its peers across the state. The community college sector as a whole has been
experiencing enrollment declines nationally; improvements in the post-recession job market is a
possible cause. TCL has continued to be very focused on attracting and retaining new students. Efforts
appear to be meeting with some success and will certainly continue. The College will remain
conservative in its estimates of future growth, and will continue to maintain a solid reserve in order to
weather future fluctuations in enrollment demand.

9

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
Statement of Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets

$

Restricted Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

9,285,225
3,751,252
3,825,062
131,893
155,892
17,149,324
4,170

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Capital Assets, not subject to depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

13,605,700
3,679,761
17,285,461

Total Assets

34,438,955

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows of Pension
Deferred Outflows of OPEB
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

$

2,324,790
818,194
3,142,984
37,581,939

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Accrued Payroll and Related Liabilities
Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities
Unearned Revenues
Total Current Liabilities

$

Liabilities payable from restricted assets
Funds Held for Others

177,112
284,338
182,484
5,500,589
6,144,523
5,195

Noncurrent Liabilities
Obligations under Capital Lease
Compensated Absences Payable
Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation
Net Pension Obligation
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

561,281
839,296
14,880,673
18,860,726
35,141,976

Total Liabilities

41,291,694

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows for Pension
Deferred Inflows for OPEB
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

361,961
1,258,437
1,620,398

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Expendable
Loans
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

16,639,091

14,495
(21,983,739)
(5,330,153)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$

37,581,939

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
REVENUES
Operating Revenues
Student Tuition and Fees, net of scholarship allowances of $3,545,281
Capital fees, net of scholarship allowances of $33,855
Technology fees, net of scholarship allowances of $33,855
Federal Grants and Contracts
State Grants and Contracts
Non-governmental Grants and Contracts
Sales and Services of Educational Programs
Auxiliary Programs, net of scholarship allowances of $163,673
Other Operating Revenues
Total Operating Revenues

$

5,715,361
155,329
144,400
1,162,010
1,880,715
126,071
38,854
876,514
625,041
10,724,295

EXPENSES
Operating Expenses
Salaries
Benefits
Scholarships
Utilities
Supplies and other services
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

9,715,633
3,969,897
2,388,946
551,897
4,980,276
1,148,608
22,755,257

Operating Loss

(12,030,962)

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Federal Grants and Contracts
State Appropriations
County Appropriations
Interest Income
Interest Expense on Capital Asset Related Debt
Net Non-operating Revenues

3,651,996
4,648,929
2,284,645
25,824
(17,700)
10,593,694

Income (Loss) before Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains (Losses)

(1,437,268)

Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains or (Losses)
Federal Capital Grants
State Capital Grant
Total Other Revenues, Expenses Gains (Losses)

16,045
500,000
516,045

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

(921,223)

NET POSITION
Net Position, beginning of year
Net Position, end of year

$

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(4,408,930)
(5,330,153)

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Student Tuition and Fees, net of scholarship allowances
Federal, State and Local Grants and Contracts
Sales and Services of Education Departments
Auxiliary Enterprise, net of scholarship allowances
Other
Revenues from SRENCP
Scholarships
Student Loans Received
Student Loans Paid Out
Payments to Vendors
Payments to Employees
Employee Benefits
Decrease in Cash Held for Others
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

$

5,676,998
3,396,650
38,854
876,514
625,041
(2,388,946)
1,925,277
(1,690,406)
(5,476,970)
(9,646,017)
(3,561,620)
(2,294)
(10,226,919)

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Appropriations
County Appropriations
Federal Grants and Contracts
Local Grants and Contracts
Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities

5,440,972
2,278,395
3,651,996
13,635
11,384,998

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Federal Capital Grants and Contracts
State Capital Grants and Contracts
Local Capital Grants and Contracts
Purchase of Capital Assets
Principal Paid on Capital Debt
Interest Paid on Capital Debt
Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related Financing Activities

142,296
500,000
1,000,000
(1,373,624)
(82,862)
(19,861)
165,949

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investments
Interest on Investments
Purchase of Investments
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

3,730,244
23,632
(3,751,252)
2,624

Net Increase in Cash
Cash - beginning of year
Cash - end of year

$

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

$

Supplementary Information
Cash Paid for Income Taxes
Cash Paid for Interest Expense
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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1,326,652
7,962,743
9,289,395

$

9,285,225
4,170
9,289,395

$

None
19,861

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
Reconciliation of Net Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Used by Operating Activities
Depreciation
Allowance for uncollectible accounts
Change in Assets and Liabilities
Decrease in Accounts Receivables
Decrease in Inventory
Increase in Prepaid Expenses
Decrease in Accounts Payable
Decrease in Accrued Liabilities
Increase in Compensated Absences
Decrease in Net Pension Obligation
Decrease in Deferred Outflows of Pension
Increase in Deferred Inflows of Pension
Increase in Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation
Increase in Deferred Outflows of OPEB
Decrease in Deferred Inflows of OPEB
Increase in Unearned Revenue
Decrease in Funds held for Others
Total adjustments
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$

(12,030,962)

1,148,608
247,788

$

9,676
26,799
(80,805)
(125,152)
(331,196)
82,837
(220,788)
649,683
70,795
612,678
(295,605)
(90,510)
101,529
(2,294)
1,804,043
(10,226,919)

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations: Technical College of the Lowcountry (the “College”), a member institution of
the South Carolina Technical College System, provides a range of educational programs to meet the needs
of the adult population of Beaufort, Jasper, Hampton, and Colleton counties. Included in this range of
programs are technical and occupational associate degree, diploma and certificate curricula that are
consistent with the needs of employers in the College’s service area. As an integral part of this mission,
the College provides a program of continuing education designed to satisfy the occupational demands of
employers through retraining and upgrading the skills of individual employees. The College also provides
a variety of developmental education programs, support services and offerings to assist students in
meeting their personal and professional educational objectives.
Reporting Entity: The financial reporting entity, as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), Defining the Financial Reporting Entity, consists of the primary government, organizations
for which the primary government is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature
and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion could cause the
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. GASB, Reporting Entity and Component Unit
Presentation and Disclosure, provides criteria for determining whether certain organizations should be
reported as component units based on the nature and significance of their relationship with a primary
government and classifies reporting requirements for those organizations. Based on these criteria, the College
evaluates potential component units on an annual basis and presents component units that are deemed
significant. As of June 30, 2019, the College has determined there are no significant component units.
Accordingly, the financial statements include the accounts of the Technical College of the Lowcountry as the
primary government. The Technical College of the Lowcountry is a component unit of the State of South
Carolina and is reported in the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
Financial Statements: The financial statement presentation for the College meets the requirements of
GASB Codification. The financial statement presentation provides a comprehensive, entity-wide
perspective of the College’s assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, expenses, changes in net position, and
cash flows.
Basis of Accounting: For financial reporting purposes, the College is considered a special purpose
government engaged only in business-type activities. Accordingly, the College’s financial statements
have been presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when an
obligation has been incurred. Student tuition and auxiliary enterprise fees are presented net of
scholarships and fellowships applied to student accounts, while stipends and other payments made directly
are presented as scholarship expenses. All significant intra-institutional transactions have been
eliminated.
The College has elected not to apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements
issued after November 30, 1989.
Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the College considers all
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Funds
invested through the State of South Carolina State Treasurer’s Office are considered cash equivalents.
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TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments: Deposits and investments for the College are governed by the South Carolina Code of
Laws, Section 11-9-660, and “Investments of Funds”, GASB Statement No. 40, Deposits and
Investment Risk Disclosures – an amendment to GASB Statement No. 3, requires disclosures related to
deposit risks, such as custodial credit risk, and interest risks, such as credit risk (including custodial
credit risk and concentration of credit risks) and interest rate risk. The College accounts for its
investments at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. Changes in unrealized gain (loss)
on the carrying value of investments are reported as a component of investment income in the statement
of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.
Accounts Receivable: Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fee charges to students, gift pledges
and auxiliary enterprise services provided to students, faculty and staff. Accounts receivable also
include amounts due from the federal government, state and local governments, or private sources in
connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant to the College’s grants and
contracts. Accounts receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts.
Inventories: Inventories for internal use are valued at cost. Inventories for resale are carried at the
lower of cost or market on the specific identification basis.
Capital Assets: Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition or fair market value at the
date of donation in the case of gifts. The College follows capitalization guidelines established by the
State of South Carolina. All land is capitalized, regardless of cost. Qualifying improvements that rest
in or on the land itself are recorded as depreciable land improvements. Major additions and renovations
and other improvements that add to the usable space, prepare existing buildings for new uses, or extend
the useful life of an existing building are capitalized. The College capitalizes movable personal
property with a unit value in excess of $5,000 and a useful life in excess of two years and depreciable
land improvements, buildings and improvements, and intangible assets costing in excess of $100,000.
Routine repairs and maintenance and library materials, except individual items costing in excess of
$5,000, are charged to operating expenses in the year in which the expense was incurred.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
generally 15 to 50 years for buildings and improvements and land improvements and 2 to 25 years for
machinery, equipment, and vehicles.
Unearned Revenues and Deposits: Unearned revenues include amounts received for tuition and fees
and certain auxiliary activities prior to the end of the fiscal year but related to the subsequent accounting
period. Unearned revenues also include amounts received from grant and contract sponsors that have
not yet been earned.
Deposits represent student fee deposits and other miscellaneous deposits. Student deposits are
recognized as revenue during the semester for which the fee is applicable and earned.
Compensated Absences: Employee vacation pay expense is accrued at year-end for financial
statement purposes. The liability and expense incurred are recorded at year-end as a component of
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and as a component of benefit expenses in the
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Net Position: The College’s net position is displayed in three components: net investment in capital
assets, restricted (with expendable and nonexpendable components separately displayed), and
unrestricted.
Net Investment in capital assets: This component consists of the College’s capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by outstanding debt obligations related to those
capital assets. To the extent debt has been incurred but not yet expended for capital assets,
such amounts are not included as a component of net investment in capital assets. Deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, if any, attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are also included.
Effective July 1, 2006, the College adopted the provisions of GASB 46, Net Assets Restricted
by Enabling Legislation, which was promulgated by the Government Accounting Standards
Board for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. GASB 46 requires governments to
disclose assets as restricted net assets if the use of the net assets is limited due to the imposition
of “enabling legislation”, which is defined as a legally enforceable restriction which a party
external to the government can compel a government to honor. As of June 30, 2019, the
Statement of Net Position includes $114,000 in capital assets (non-depreciable land) which is
restricted by enabling legislation. The land, which was conveyed to the College in 1968,
includes a restriction imposed by the grantor requiring the property be used for educational
purposes in perpetuity.
Restricted: This component consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources related to those assets.
Restricted – expendable: Restricted expendable component includes resources in
which the College is legally or contractually obligated to spend resources in accordance
with restrictions imposed by external third parties. The Statement of Net Position
includes $14,495 in restricted expendable resulting from loans made to students.
Restricted – nonexpendable: The nonexpendable restricted component includes
financial resources which are required to be maintained in perpetuity. The College has
no nonexpendable restricted resources.
Unrestricted: The unrestricted component is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows
of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the
determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position.
This includes resources derived from student tuition and fees, appropriations, and sales and
services of educational departments and auxiliary enterprises. These resources are used for
transactions relating to the educational and general operations of the College, and may be used
at the discretion of the governing board to meet current expenses for any purpose. The
resources also include auxiliary enterprises which are substantially self-supporting activities
that provide services for students, faculty and staff.
The College’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income Taxes: The College is exempt from income taxes under the Internal Revenue Code.
Classification of Revenues: The College has classified its revenues as either operating or nonoperating revenues according to the following criteria:
Operating revenues: Operating revenues generally result from exchange transactions to
provide goods or services related to the College’s principal ongoing operations. These
revenues include student tuition and fees received in exchange for providing educational
services, and other related services to students, fees received by the College cosmetology
department in exchange for providing services, receipts for scholarships where the provider has
identified the student recipients, fees received from organizations and individuals in exchange
for miscellaneous goods and services provided by the College, and grants and contracts that
are essentially the same as contracts for services that finance programs the College would not
otherwise undertake.
Non-operating revenues:
Non-operating revenues include activities that have the
characteristics of non-exchange transactions. These revenues include gifts and contributions,
appropriations, investment income, and any grants and contracts that are not classified as
operating revenue or restricted by the grantor to be used exclusively for capital purposes.
Scholarship discounts and allowances: Student tuition and fee revenues are reported net of
scholarship discounts and allowances in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in
net position. Scholarship allowances are the difference between the stated charge for goods and
services provided by the College, and the amount that is paid by students and/or third parties
making payments on the students’ behalf. Certain grants, such as Pell and other Federal, state
or non-governmental programs are recorded as either operating or non-operating revenues in
the College’s financial statements. To the extent that revenues from such programs are used to
satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, the College has recorded a scholarship
discount and allowance.
Sales and Services of Educational and Other Activities: Revenues from sales and services of
educational and other activities generally consists of amounts received from instructional and
public service activities that incidentally create goods and services which may be sold to
students, faculty, staff, and the general public. The College receives such revenues primarily
from the cosmetology and massage therapy department services.
Auxiliary Enterprises and Internal Service Activities: Auxiliary enterprise revenues primarily
represent revenues generated by vending, bookstore and cosmetology services. Revenues on
internal service and auxiliary enterprise activities and the related expenditures of college
departments have been eliminated.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Classification of Expenses: The College has classified its expenses as either operating or nonoperating expenses according to the following criteria:
Operating expenses: Operating expenses generally result from the purchasing of goods or services
related to the College’s principal ongoing operations. These expenses include (1) salaries and benefits
paid to employees for providing educational services and other related services to students; (2) utilities
to maintain the educational buildings; (3) supplies and services for goods and services provided to the
College; (4) scholarship expenses for student financial assistance; and (5) depreciation expense for
capital items.
Non-operating expenses: Non-operating expenses include activities that have the characteristics of
non-exchange transactions. These expenses include interest expense and capital items purchased.
Concentrations: During the year ended June 30, 2019, the College received 22.5%, 30.6%, and 10.7%
of its total revenues (excluding capital contributions) from Federal, State and County operating grants
and appropriations.
Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
NOTE 2 CASH, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
The following schedule reconciles cash and investments as reported on the Statement of Net Position
to footnote disclosure provided for deposits and investments.
Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Total Cash and Investments on Statement of Net Position

$
$

9,285,225
4,170
3,751,252
13,040,647

Disclosure, Deposits and Investments Plus Reconciling Items:
Deposits held by financial institutions, carrying value
Investments held by financial institutions, reported amount
Cash on hand
Total Disclosure, Deposits and Investments Plus Reconciling
Items
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$

9,288,230
3,751,252
1,165

$

13,040,647

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
NOTE 2 CASH, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Deposits: State Law requires that a bank or savings and loan association receiving State funds must
secure the deposits by deposit insurance, surety bonds, collateral securities, or letters of credit to protect
the State against any loss.
Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
a depository financial institution, the College will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Technical College of the
Lowcountry does not maintain a deposit policy regarding custodial credit risk. All certificates of
deposit, regardless of maturity are reported as deposits for custodial credit risk categorization.
The College’s deposits at June 30, 2019 had carrying balances of $13,039,482 and bank balances of
$13,697,311 due to outstanding checks exceeding deposits in transit. Of these deposits, $4,541,172
were insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and the remaining $9,156,139 was
collateralized with securities held by the pledging institutions in the College’s name.
Foreign Currency Risk: The Technical College of the Lowcountry does not maintain deposits that
are denominated in a currency other than the United States dollar. Therefore, the College is not exposed
to this risk.
Investments: The College is authorized, by the South Carolina Code of Laws, Section 11-9-660, to
invest in obligations of the United States and its agencies, obligations of the State of South Carolina
and its political subdivisions, collateralized or federally insured certificates of deposit, and
collateralized repurchase agreements.
The College’s investments at June 30, 2019, that are not with the State Treasurer’s Office are presented
below. All investments are presented by investment type and debt securities are presented by maturity.
Investment Maturities (in years)
Investment Type
Certificates of Deposit

$

Total

Less than 1

3,751,252

$ 3,751,252

1-5

$

6-10

-

$

More than 10

-

$

-

Credit Risk: Credit Risk is the risk that an insurer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligation. The Technical College of the Lowcountry investment policy does not address
credit risk.
Concentration of Credit Risk: Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the
magnitude of a government’s investment in a single issuer. The Technical College of the Lowcountry
investment policy does not address concentration of credit risk.
Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. It occurs because potential purchasers of debt securities
will not agree to pay face value for those securities, if interest rates subsequently increase, thereby
affording potential purchasers more favorable rates on essentially equivalent securities. The Technical
College of the Lowcountry investment policy does not address interest rate risk.
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NOTE 5 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses as of June 30, 2019, are summarized as follows:
Payables:
Accounts Payable Trade
Student Refunds Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Sales and Use Tax Payable
Other Accrued Liabilities
Total Accounts Payable

$

$

120,623
36,373
5,878
2,872
11,366
177,112

NOTE 6 UNEARNED REVENUES
Unearned revenues as of June 30, 2019, are summarized as follows:
Unearned Revenues:
Fall Tuition
Summer Tuition
Fall Registration Fees
Fall Capital Fees
Fall Technology Fees
Fall High Course Fees
Summer Technology Fees
Federal Grants and Contracts
State Grants and Contracts
Local Grants and Contracts
State Appropriations
Nongovernment Grants and Contracts
Total Unearned Revenues

$

$

2,398,163
593,374
70,800
46,008
46,008
23,750
69,789
126,251
14,934
1,000,000
1,078,477
33,035
5,500,589

NOTE 7 LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Obligation under Capital Lease
Accrued Compensated Absences
Total Long Term Liabilities

Balance
July 1, 2018
$ 729,232
853,854
$ 1,583,086

Additions
$
141,112
$ 141,112
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Reductions
$ 82,862
58,275
$ 141,137

Balance
June 30, 2019
$ 646,370
936,691
$ 1,583,061

Due Within
One Year
$ 85,089
97,395
$ 182,484

Net Long
Term
$ 561,281
839,296
$ 1,400,577

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
NOTE 8 CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION
The College is obligated for payment of $646,370 on original debt of $1,500,000 of a $17,500,000
General Obligation Bond Issue by Beaufort County in 2006. The proceeds were used in the construction
of the New River Campus. The interest rate is 3.5%. Interest expense on the debt during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2019 was $17,700. The scheduled maturities of the Capital Lease Obligation is as
follows:

Year Ended
June 30,
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2026
Total

Principal
$

$

Total
Payments

Interest

85,089
87,384
89,749
92,188
291,960
646,370

$

$

17,635
15,340
12,975
10,536
16,209
72,695

$

$

102,724
102,724
102,724
102,724
308,169
719,065

Technical College of the Lowcountry does not have any unused lines of credit at June 30, 2019.
NOTE 9 ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES
Unused vacation leave liabilities are reported in the government-wide financial statements. With
sufficient notification of employment termination, unused vacation will be paid. Employees who are
discharged for disciplinary reasons are not eligible to receive pay for unused accrued vacation. The
College has no financial liability for its unused sick leave. The accumulated unpaid vacation earned as
of June 30, 2019, totaled $936,691. This total reflects the pay rates in effect at July 2019 plus estimated
employee benefits of twenty-eight (28) percent of the payroll.
NOTE 10 NET PENSION OBLIGATION
Description of the Entity
The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA), created July 1, 2012 and governed by
an 11-member Board, is the state agency responsible for the administration and management of the
various Retirement Systems and retirement programs of the state of South Carolina, including the State
Optional Retirement Program and the S.C. Deferred Compensation Program, as well as the state’s
employee insurance programs. As such, PEBA is responsible for administering the South Carolina
Retirement Systems’ five defined benefit pension plans. The Retirement Funding and Administration
Act of 2017, which became effective July 1, 2017, increased the employer and employee contribution
rates, established a ceiling on the SCRS employee contribution rates, lowered the assumed rate of
return, required a scheduled reduction of the funding periods, and addressed various governance issues
including the assignment of the PEBA Board as custodian of the retirement trust funds and assignment
of the RSIC and PEBA as co-trustees of the assets of the retirement trust funds. By law, the State Fiscal
Accountability Authority (SFAA), which consists of five elected officials, also reviews certain PEBA
Board decisions regarding the actuary of the Systems.
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NOTE 10 NET PENSION OBLIGATION (Continued)
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Systems and
additions to/deductions from the Systems fiduciary net position have been determined on the accrual
basis of accounting as they are reported by the Systems in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). For this purpose, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses
are recognized when incurred. Benefit and refund expenses are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value.
PEBA issues a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) containing financial statements and
required supplementary information for the Systems’ Pension Trust Funds. The CAFR is publicly
available through the Retirement Benefits’ link on PEBA’s website at www.peba.sc.gov, or a copy may
be obtained by submitting a request to PEBA, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, SC 29223. PEBA is
considered a division of the primary government of the state of South Carolina and therefore, retirement
trust fund financial information is also included in the comprehensive annual financial report of the
state.
Plan Descriptions
The South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), a cost–sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan, was established July 1, 1945, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-1-20 of the South
Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement and other benefits for teachers and
employees of the state and its political subdivisions. SCRS covers employees of state agencies, public
school districts, higher education institutions, other participating local subdivisions of government and
individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General Assembly at or after the 2012 general election.
The State Optional Retirement Program (State ORP) is a defined contribution plan that is offered as an
alternative to SCRS to certain newly hired employees of state agencies, institutions of higher education,
public school districts and individuals first elected to the General Assembly at or after the general
election in November 2012. State ORP participants direct the investment of their funds into an account
administered by one of four third party record keepers.
In addition to the plans described above, PEBA also administers three single-employer defined benefit
pension plans, which are not covered in this report. They are the Retirement System for Members of
the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina (GARS), the Retirement System for Judges and
Solicitors of South Carolina (JSRS), and the South Carolina National Guard Supplemental Retirement
Plan (SCNG).
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NOTE 10 NET PENSION OBLIGATION (Continued)
Membership
Membership requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. A brief
summary of the requirements under each system is presented below.


SCRS - Generally, all employees of covered employers are required to participate in and
contribute to the system as a condition of employment. This plan covers general employees
and teachers and individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General Assembly beginning
with the November 2012 general election. An employee member of the system with an
effective date of membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee
member of the system with an effective date of membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class
Three member.



State ORP - As an alternative to membership in SCRS, newly hired state, public school, and
higher education employees and individuals newly elected to the S.C. General Assembly
beginning with the November 2012 general election have the option to participate in the State
ORP. PEBA assumes no liability for State ORP benefits. Rather, the benefits are the liability
of the four third party record keepers. For this reason, State ORP assets are not part of the
retirement systems’ trust funds for financial statement purposes. Contributions to the State ORP
are at the same rates as SCRS. A direct remittance is required from the employer to the
member’s account with the ORP vendor for the employee contribution and a portion of the
employer contribution (5 percent). A direct remittance is also required to SCRS for the
remaining portion of the employer contribution and an incidental death benefit contribution, if
applicable, which is retained by SCRS.

Benefits
Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. PEBA does not have the
authority to establish or amend benefit terms without a legislative change in the code of laws. Key
elements of the benefit calculation include the benefit multiplier, years of service, and average final
compensation/current annual salary. A brief summary of the benefit terms for each system is presented
below.
• SCRS - A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of
earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 65 or with 28 years credited service
regardless of age. A member may elect early retirement with reduced pension benefits payable at
age 55 with 25 years of service credit. A Class Three member who has separated from service with
at least eight or more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension upon satisfying the
Rule of 90 requirement that the total of the member’s age and the member’s creditable service
equals at least 90 years. Both Class Two and Class Three members are eligible to receive a reduced
deferred annuity at age 60 if they satisfy the five- or eight-year earned service requirement,
respectively. An incidental death benefit is also available to beneficiaries of active and retired
members of employers who participate in the death benefit program.
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The annual retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by
the lesser of one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a
benefit on July 1 of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase. Members who retire
under the early retirement provisions at age 55 with 25 years of service are not eligible for the
benefit adjustment until the second July 1 after reaching age 60 or the second July 1 after the date
they would have had 28 years of service credit had they not retired.
The retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser of
one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on July 1
of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase.
Contributions
Contributions are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. If the scheduled employee
and employer contributions provided in statute, or the rates last adopted by the board, are insufficient
to maintain the amortization period set in statute, the board shall increase employer contribution rates
as necessary.
After June 30, 2027, if the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the Systems for funding purposes
shows a ratio of the actuarial value of system assets to the actuarial accrued liability of the system (the
funded ratio) that is equal to or greater than eighty-five percent, then the board, effective on the
following July first, may decrease the then current contribution rates upon making a finding that the
decrease will not result in a funded ratio of less than eighty-five percent. If contribution rates are
decreased pursuant to this provision, and the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the system shows
a funded ratio of less than eighty-five percent, then effective on the following July first, and annually
thereafter as necessary, the board shall increase the then current contribution rates until a subsequent
annual actuarial valuation of the system shows a funded ratio that is equal to or greater than eighty-five
percent.
The Retirement System Funding and Administration Act establishes a ceiling on employee contribution
rates at 9 percent and 9.75 percent for SCRS. The employer contribution rates will continue to increase
annually by 1 percent through July 1, 2022. The legislation’s ultimate scheduled employer rate is 18.56
percent for SCRS. The amortization period is scheduled to be reduced one year for each of the next 10
years to a twenty year amortization period.
Required employee contribution rates1 are as follows:
Fiscal Year 20191

Fiscal Year 20181

9.00%
9.00%

9.00%
9.00%

9.00%

9.00%

SCRS
Employee Class Two
Employee Class Three
State ORP
Employee
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Required employer contribution rates1 are as follows:
Fiscal Year 20191

Fiscal Year 20181

14.41%
14.41%
0.15%

13.41%
13.41%
0.15%

14.41%
0.15%

13.41%
0.15%

SCRS
Employer Class Two
Employer Class Three
Employer Incidental Death Benefit
State ORP
Employer Contribution2
Employer Incidental Death Benefit
1 Calculated

on earnable compensation as defined in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws.
this employer contribution, 5% of earnable compensation must be remitted by the employer directly to the ORP vendor
to be allocated to the member’s account with the remainder of the employer contribution remitted to the SCRS.

2 Of

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods
Actuarial valuations of the plan involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and future salary increases. Amounts determined regarding the net pension
liability are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. South Carolina state statute requires that an actuarial experience
study be completed at least once in each five-year period. An experience report on the Systems was
most recently issued for the period ending June 30, 2015.
The June 30, 2018, total pension liability (TPL), net pension liability (NPL), and sensitivity information
shown in this report were determined by our consulting actuary, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and Company
(GRS) and are based on an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2017. The total pension liability
was rolled-forward from the valuation date to the plans’ fiscal year end, June 30, 2018, using generally
accepted actuarial principles.
The following table provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used to calculate
the TPL as of June 30, 2018.
SCRS
Actuarial cost method

Entry age normal

Investment rate of return1

7.25%

Projected salary increases

3.0% to 12.5% (varies by service)1

Benefit adjustments

lesser of 1% or $500 annually

1 Includes inflation at 2.25%
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The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member’s job category and gender. The
base mortality assumptions, the 2016 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality table (2016 PRSC),
was developed using the Systems’ mortality experience. These base rates are adjusted for future
improvement in mortality using published Scale AA projected from the year 2016.
Assumptions used in the determination of the June 30, 2018, TPL are as follows.
Former Job Class
Educators
General Employees and Members
of the General Assembly
Public Safety and Firefighters

Males
2016 PRSC Males multiplied by 92%
2016 PRSC Males multiplied by 100%

Females
2016 PRSC Females multiplied by 98%
2016 PRSC Females multiplied by 111%

2016 PRSC Males multiplied by 125%

2016 PRSC Females multiplied by 111%

Net Pension Liability
The NPL is calculated separately for each system and represents that particular system’s TPL
determined in accordance with GASB No. 67 less that System’s fiduciary net position. NPL totals, as
of June 30, 2018, for SCRS are presented below.

System
SCRS

Total Pension
Liability
$
41,095,218

Plan Fiduciary Net
Position
$
22,234,492

Employers' Net Pension
Liability (Asset)
$
18,860,726

Plan Fiduciary Net
Position as a % of the
Total Pension Liability
54.1%

The TPL is calculated by the Systems’ actuary, and each plan’s fiduciary net position is reported in the
Systems’ financial statements. The NPL is disclosed in accordance with the requirements of GASB 67
in the Systems’ notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information. Liability
calculations performed by the Systems’ actuary for the purpose of satisfying the requirements of GASB
Nos. 67 and 68 are not applicable for other purposes, such as determining the plans’ funding
requirements.
Long-term Expected Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is based upon 30 year capital market
assumptions. The long-term expected rate of returns represent assumptions developed using an
arithmetic building block approach primarily based on consensus expectations and market based inputs.
Expected returns are net of investment fees.
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The expected returns, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset allocation
adopted at the beginning of the 2018 fiscal year. The long-term expected rate of return is produced by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage and adding
expected inflation and is summarized in the table below. For actuarial purposes, the 7.25 percent
assumed annual investment rate of return used in the calculation of the TPL includes a 5.00 percent real
rate of return and a 2.25 percent inflation component.

Asset class
Global Equity
Global Public Equity
Private Equity
Equity Options Strategies
Real Assets
Real Estate (Private)
Real Estate (REITs)
Infrastructure
Opportunistic
GTAA/Risk Parity
Hedge Funds (non-PA)
Other Opportunistic Strategies
Diversified Credits
Mixed Credit
Emerging Markets Debt
Private Debt
Conservative Fixed Income
Core Fixed Income
Cash and Short Duration (Net)
Total Expected Real Return
Inflation for Actuarial Purposes
Total Expected Nominal Return

Target Asset
Allocation
47.0%
33.0%
9.0%
5.0%
10.0%
6.0%
2.0%
2.0%
13.0%
8.0%
2.0%
3.0%
18.0%
6.0%
5.0%
7.0%
12.0%
10.0%
2.0%
100.0%

Expected
Arithmetic Real
Rate of Return

Long-Term Expected
Portfolio Real Rate
of Return

6.99%
8.73%
5.52%

2.31%
0.79%
0.28%

3.54%
5.46%
5.09%

0.21%
0.11%
0.10%

3.75%
3.45%
3.75%

0.30%
0.07%
0.11%

3.05%
3.94%
3.89%

0.18%
0.20%
0.27%

0.94%
0.34%

0.09%
0.01%
5.03%
2.25%
7.28%

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the TPL was 7.25 percent. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers in SCRS will be
made based on the actuarially determined rates based on provisions in the South Carolina Code of
Laws. Based on those assumptions, the System’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all the projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the TPL.
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Sensitivity Analysis
The following table presents the collective NPL of the participating employers calculated using the
discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the employers’ NPL would be if it were calculated using
a discount rate that is 1.00 percent lower (6.25 percent) or 1.00 percent higher (8.25 percent) than the
current rate.

SCRS

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
Current Discount
1% Increase
1% Decrease
Rate (7.25%)
System
(6.25%)
(8.25%)
$
24,100,487
$
18,860,726
$
15,114,774

Pension Expense
Components of collective pension expense reported in the Schedules of Pension Amounts by Employer
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, are presented below:
Description

SCRS

Service cost (annual cost of current service)

$

Interest on the total pension liability

766,695
2,863,253

Plan administrative costs

12,338

Plan member contributions

(731,203)

Expected return on plan assets
Recognition of current year amortization - Difference
between expected and actual experience & assumption
changes

(1,530,560)

366,819

Recognition of current year amortization - Difference
between projected and actual investment earnings

87,429

Other
Total

$

1,291
1,836,062

Additional items included in Total Employer Pension Expense in the Schedules of Pension Amounts
by Employer are the current period amortized portions of deferred outflows and/or inflows of resources
related to changes in employers’ proportionate share of the collective NPL and differences between
actual employer contributions and proportionate share of total plan employer contributions. These two
deferrals are specific to cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans as discussed in
paragraphs 54 and 55 of GASB 68.
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Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
The following schedules reflect the amortization of collective deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources
related to pensions outstanding as of June 30, 2018.
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
SCRS
Difference between expected and actual experience

$

34,046

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
SCRS
$

110,990

Assumption changes

748,288

-

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

299,603

-

7,953

250,971

Changes in proportion and differences between contributions
and proportionate share of contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total

$

1,234,900
2,324,790

$

Difference between expected and actual experience
SCRS
$
(76,944)
Balance
1

4.15

Amortization period
2

Amortized period ending June 30,
2019
2020
2021
2022
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Assumption Changes
$

Initial Balance

SCRS
748,288

3

4.15

Amortization period
2

Amortized period ending June 30,
2019
2020
2021

(360,968)
(360,968)
(26,352)

Difference between projected and actual investment earnings
SCRS
$
299,603
Initial Balance
3

5

Amortization period
2

Amortized period ending June 30,
2019
2020
2021
2022

(392,873)
(137,076)
201,961
28,385

1

In accordance with GASB 68, paragraph 71a, the difference between each year's expected and actual experience is
required to be amortized over the average remaining service lives of all employees provided with pensions through the
plan at June 30.
2

Amount amortized and included in pension expense during the measurement period listed.

3

In accordance with GASB 68, paragraph 71b, the difference between each year's projected and actual investment
earnings is required to be amortized over a closed, 5 year period.

As discussed in paragraph 71b of GASB 68, collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources arising from differences between projected and actual pension plan investment
earnings in different measurement periods should be aggregated and included as a net collective deferred
outflow of resources related to pensions or a net collective deferred inflow of resources related to
pensions. Accordingly, the Outstanding Balance of Deferred Outflows of Resources in the Schedules
of Pension Amounts by Employer reflects the current net difference between projected and actual
pension plan investment earnings.
Additional items reported within the Outstanding Balance of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of
Resources in the Schedules of Pension Amounts by Employer result from the two cost-sharing multipleemployer defined benefit pension plan-specific deferrals previously discussed.
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Employer Contributions
Employers’ proportionate shares were calculated on the basis of employer contributions actually remitted to
the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. Employer contributions recognized by the Systems that are
not representative of future contribution effort are excluded in the determination of employers’ proportionate
shares. Examples of employer contributions not representative of future contribution effort are contributions
toward the purchase of employee service purchases and employer contributions paid by employees.
The following table provides a reconciliation of employer contributions in the plans’ Statement of Changes
in Fiduciary Net Position (per the Systems’ separately issued financial statements) to the employer
contributions used in the determination of employers’ proportionate shares of collective pension amounts
reported in the Schedules of Employer Allocations.
SCRS
Employer Contributions Reported in Statement of
Changes in Net Position for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2018

$

1,094,663

Nonemployer Contributions Reported in Statement of
Changes in Net Position for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2018

88,361

Employer Contributions Not Representative of Future
Contribution Effort

251

Employer and Nonemployer Contributions Used as the
Basis for Allocating Employers' Proportionate Shares of
Collective Pension Amounts - June 30, 2018
Measurement Date

$

1,183,275

Additional Financial and Actuarial Information
Information contained in these Notes to the Schedules of Employer Allocations and Schedules of Pension
Amounts by Employer (Schedules) was compiled from the Systems’ audited financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and the accounting and financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2018. Additional financial information supporting the preparation of the Schedules (including the
unmodified audit opinion on the financial statements and required supplementary information) is available
in the Systems' CAFR.
Payables to the Pension Plan
At June 30, 2019, The Technical College of the Lowcountry reported payables of $208,995 that represents
the amount due for the month of June.
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Description of the Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA) was created by the South Carolina General
Assembly as part of Act No. 278 effective July 1, 2012. PEBA – Insurance Benefits is a state agency
responsible for the administration and management of the state’s employee insurance programs, other postemployment benefits trusts and retirement systems and is part of the State of South Carolina primary
government.
The governing board of PEBA is a board of 11 members. The membership composition is three members
appointed by the Governor, two members appointed by the President Pro Tempore of the Senate, two
members appointed by the Chairman of the Senate Finance Committee, two members appointed by the
Speaker of the House of Representatives and two members appointed by the Chairman of the House Ways
and Means Committee. Individuals appointed to the PEBA board must possess certain qualifications.
Members of the PEBA board serve for terms of two years and until their successors are appointed and
qualify. Terms commence on July first of even numbered years. The PEBA board appoints the Executive
Director. The laws of the State and the policies and procedures specified by the State for State agencies
are applicable to all activities of PEBA. By law, the State Fiscal Accountability Authority (SFFA), which
consists of five elected officials, also reviews certain PEBA Board decisions in administering the State
Health Plan and other post-employment benefits (OPEB).
Plan Descriptions
The Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust Funds (OPEB Trusts), collectively refers to the South Carolina
Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund (SCRHITF) and the South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance
Trust Fund (SCLTDITF), were established by the State of South Carolina as Act 195, which became
effective in May, 2008. The SCRHITF was created to fund and account for the employer costs of the
State’s retiree health and dental plans. The SCLTDITF was created to fund and account for the employer
costs of the State’s Basic Long-Term Disability Income Benefit Plan.
In accordance with Act 195, the OPEB Trusts are administered by the PEBA – Insurance Benefits and the
State Treasurer is the custodian of the funds held in trust. The Board of Directors of PEBA has been
designated as the Trustee.
The OPEB Trusts are cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plans. Article 5 of the State
Code of Laws defines the two plans and authorizes the Trustee to at any time adjust the plans, including its
benefits and contributions, as necessary to insure the fiscal stability of the plans. In accordance with the
South Carolina Code of Laws and the annual Appropriations Act, the State provides post-employment
health and dental and long-term disability benefits to retired State and school district employees and their
covered dependents.
At June 30, 2019, the College had an SCLTDITF net OPEB liability of $1,936, which was not accrued due
to it being considered immaterial to the financial statements as a whole.
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Benefits
The SCRHITF is a healthcare plan that covers retired employees of the State of South Carolina, including
all agencies, and public school districts. The SCRHITF provides health and dental insurance benefits to
eligible retirees. Generally, retirees are eligible for the health and dental benefits if they have established
at least ten years of retirement service credit. For new hires beginning employment May 2, 2008 and after,
retirees are eligible for benefits if they have established 25 years of service for 100% employer funding
and 15-24 years of service for 50% employer funding.
The SCLTDITF is a long-term disability plan that covers employees of the State of South Carolina,
including all agencies and public school districts and all participating local governmental entities. The
SCLTDITF provides disability payments to eligible employees that have been approved for disability.
Contributions and Funding Policies
Section 1-11-710 of the South Carolina Code of Laws of 1976, as amended, requires the postemployment
and long-term disability benefits to be funded through non-employer and employer contributions for active
employees and retirees to the PEBA – Insurance Benefits. Non-employer contributions consist of an
annual appropriation by the General Assembly and the statutorily required transfer from PEBA – Insurance
Benefits reserves.
The SCRHITF is funded through participating employers that are mandated by State statute to contribute
at a rate assessed each year by the Department of Administration Executive Budget Office on active
employee covered payroll. The covered payroll surcharge for the year ended June 30, 2018 was 5.50
percent. The South Carolina Retirement System collects the monthly covered payroll surcharge for all
participating employers and remits it directly to the SCRHITF. Other sources of funding for the SCRHITF
also include the implicit subsidy, or age-related subsidy inherent in the healthcare premiums structure. The
implicit subsidy represents a portion of the health care expenditures paid on behalf of the employer’s active
employees. For purposes of GASB Statement No. 75, this expenditure on behalf of the active employee is
reclassified as a retiree health care expenditure so that the employer’s contributions towards the plan reflect
the underlying age-adjusted, retiree benefit costs. Non-employer contributions include the mandatory
transfer of accumulated PEBA – Insurance Benefits’ reserves and the annual appropriation budgeted by
the General Assembly. It is also funded through investment income.
The SCLTDITF is funded through employer contributions for active employees that elect health insurance
coverage. For this group of active employees, PEBA – Insurance Benefits bills and collects premiums
charged to State agencies, public school districts and other participating local governments. The monthly
premium per active employee was $3.22 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The SCLTDITF premium
is billed monthly by PEBA – Insurance Benefits and transferred monthly to the SCLTDITF. It is also
funded through investment income.
The allocation percentage of the OPEB amounts are calculated differently for each OPEB Trust. For the
SCRHITF, the allocation percentage is based on the covered payroll surcharge contribution for each
employer. Please note that actual covered payroll contributions received from SCRS for the fiscal year
2018 totaled $474,304,318. However, the covered payroll contributions total includes prior year covered
payroll contribution adjustments and true-ups that net to a total of negative $511,143.
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In accordance with part (b) of paragraph 69 of GASB Statement No. 75, participating employers should
recognize revenue in an amount equal to the employer’s proportionate share of the change in the collective
net OPEB liability arising from contributions to the OPEB plan during the measurement period from nonemployer contributing entities for purposes other than the separate financing of specific liabilities to the
OPEB plan. Therefore, employers should classify this revenue in the same manner as it classifies grants
from other entities.
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the OPEB Trusts, and additions
to and deductions from the OPEB Trusts fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as
they were reported by the OPEB Trusts. For this purpose, revenues are recognized when earned and
expenses are recognized when incurred. Therefore, benefit and administrative expenses are recognized
when due and payable. Investments are reported at fair value.
PEBA – Insurance Benefits issues audited financial statements and required supplementary information for
the OPEB Trust Funds. This information is publicly available through the PEBA – Insurance Benefits’
link on PEBA’s website at www.peba.sc.gov or a copy may be obtained by submitting a request to PEBA
– Insurance Benefits, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, SC 29223. PEBA is considered a division of the
primary government of the state of South Carolina and therefore, OPEB Trust fund financial information
is also included in the comprehensive annual financial report of the state.
Actuarial Assumptions and Methods
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about
future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Actuarially determined amounts are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future.
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plans (as understood
by the employer and plan participants) and include the types of benefits provided at the time the valuation
and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point.
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Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation for SCRHITF:
Valuation Date:
Actuarial Cost Method:
Inflation:
Investment Rate of Return:
Single Discount Rate:
Demographic Assumptions:
Mortality:

Health Care Trend Rate:
Aging Factors:
Retiree Participation:

Notes:

June 30, 2017
Entry Age Normal
2.25%
4.00, net of OPEB Plan investment expense; including inflation
3.62% as of June 30, 2018
Based on the experience study performed for the South Carolina
Retirement Systems for the 5-year period ending June 30, 2015
For healthy retirees, the 2016 Public Retirees of South Carolina
Mortality Table for Males and the 2016 Public Retirees of South
Carolina Mortality Table for Females are used with fully
generational mortality projections based on Scale AA from the
year 2016. Multipliers are applied to the base tables based on
gender and employment type.
Initial trend starting at 6.75% and gradually decreasing to an
ultimate trend rate of 4.15% over a period of 14 years
Based on plan specific experience
79% for retirees who are eligible for funded premiums
59% participation for retirees who are eligible for Partial
Funded Premiums
20% participation for retirees who are eligible for NonFunded Premiums
There were no benefit changes during the current year;
the discount rate changed from 3.59% as of June 30, 2017 to
3.62% as of June 30, 2018
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Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation for SCLTDITF:
Valuation Date:
Actuarial Cost Method:
Inflation:
Investment Rate of Return:
Single Discount Rate:
Salary, Termination, and
Retirement Rates:
Disability Incidence:
Disability Recovery:
Offsets:
Expenses:
Notes:

June 30, 2017
Entry Age Normal
2.25%
4.00, net of Plan investment expense; including inflation
3.91% as of June 30, 2018
Based on the experience study performed for the South
Carolina Retirement Systems for the 5-year period ending June
30, 2015
The rates used in the valuation are based on the rates developed
for the South Carolina Retirement Systems pension plans
For participants in payment, 1987 CGDT Group Disability; for
active employees, 60% were assumed to recover after the first
year and 92% were assumed to recover after the first two years
40% are assumed to be eligible for Social Security benefits;
assumed percentage who will be eligible for a pension plan
offset varies based on employee group
Third party administrative expenses were included in the
benefit projections.
The discount rate changed from 3.87% as of June 30, 2017
to 3.91% as of June 30, 2018

Roll Forward Disclosure
The actuarial valuation was performed as of June 30, 2017. Update procedures were used to roll forward
the total OPEB liability to June 30, 2018.
Net OPEB Liability
The Net OPEB Liability (NOL) is calculated separately for each OPEB Trust Fund and represents that
particular Trust’s Total OPEB Liability (TOL) determined in accordance with GASB No. 74 less that
Trust’s fiduciary net position. The allocation of each employer’s proportionate share of the collective Net
OPEB Liability and collective OPEB Expense was determined using the employer’s payroll-related
contributions over the measurement period. This method is expected to be reflective of the employer’s
long-term contribution effort as well as be transparent to individual employers and their external auditors.
The following table represents the components of the net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2018:

System
SCRHITF

Total OPEB
Liability
$
16,158,163

Plan Fiduciary Net
Position
$
1,277,490
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14,880,673

Plan Fiduciary Net
Position as a % of the
Total OPEB Liability
7.9%
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The TOL is calculated by the Trusts’ actuary, and each Trust’s fiduciary net position is reported in the
Trust’s financial statements. The NOL is disclosed in accordance with the requirements of GASB No. 74
in the Trusts’ notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information. Liability
calculations performed by the Trusts’ actuary for the purpose of satisfying the requirements of GASB Nos.
74 and 75 and are not applicable for other purposes, such as determining the Trusts’ funding requirements.
Single Discount Rate
The Single Discount Rate of 3.62% was used to measure the total OPEB liability for the SCRHITF. The
accounting policy for this plan is to set the Single Discount Rate equal to the prevailing municipal bond
rate. Due to the plan’s investment and funding policies, the difference between a blended discount rate and
the municipal bond rate would be less than several basis points (several hundredths of one percent).
A Single Discount Rate of 3.91% was used to measure the total OPEB liability for the SCLTDITF. This
Single Discount Rate was based on an expected rate of return on plan investments of 4.00% and a municipal
bond rate of 3.62%. The projection of cash flows to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that
employer contributions will remain at $38.64 per year for each covered active employee. Based on these
assumptions, the plan’s Fiduciary Net Position and future contributions were sufficient to finance the
benefit payments through the year 2037. As a result, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments was applied to project benefit payments through the year 2037, and the municipal bond rate
was applied to all benefit payments after that date.
Long-term Expected Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of returns represent assumptions developed using an arithmetic building block
approach primarily based on consensus expectations and market based inputs. The expected returns, along
with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset allocation adopted at the beginning of
the 2017 fiscal year. The long-term expected rate of return is produced by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target allocation percentage and adding expected inflation. This information is
summarized in the following table:
AllocationExpected
Weighted LongTarget
Arithmetic
Term Expected
Asset
Real Rate of
Portfolio Real Rate
Asset class
Allocation
Return
of Return
U.S. Domestic Fixed Income
80%
2.09%
1.67%
Cash
20%
0.84%
0.17%
Total
100%
1.84%
Expected Inflation
2.25%
Total Return
4.09%

Investment Return Assumption

4.00%
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Sensitivity Analysis
The following table presents the SCRHITF’s net OPEB liability calculated using a Single Discount Rate
of 3.62%, as well as what the plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a Single
Discount Rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher:
Sensitivity of the Net OPEBLiability to Changes in the Discount Rate
1% Decrease
Current Discount
1% Increase
2.62%
Rate 3.62%
4.62%
$
17,530,862
$
14,880,673
$
12,744,411

System
SCRHITF

Regarding the sensitivity of the SCRHITF’s net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates,
the following table presents the plan’s net OPEB liability, calculated using the assumed trend rates as well
as what the plan’s net OPEB liability would be if were calculated using a trend rate that is one percent
lower or one percent higher:
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates
Current Healthcare
System
1% Decrease
Cost Trend Rate
1% Increase
SCRHITF
$
12,244,391
$
14,880,673
$
18,288,897

OPEB Expense
Components of collective OPEB expense reported in the Schedule of OPEB Amounts by Employer for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 are presented below.

Description

SCRHITF

Service cost (annual cost of current service)

$

547,288

Interest on the Total OPEB Liability

549,063

Projected Earnings on Plan Investments

(48,952)

OPEB Plan Administrative Expense
Recognition of Outflow (Inflow) of Resources due to
Liabilities

(193,456)

Recognition of Outflow (Inflow) of Resources due to
Assets
Total

15,792
869,803
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Additional items included in Total Employer OPEB Expense are the current period amortized portions of
deferred outflows and/or inflows of resources related to changes in employers’ proportionate share of the
collective NOL and differences between actual employer contributions and proportionate share of total
plan employer contributions.
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
As discussed in paragraph 86 of GASB Statement No. 75, differences between expected and actual
experience and changes in assumptions are recognized in OPEB expense using a systematic and rational
method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees
that are provided OPEB through the OPEB plan (active and inactive members) determined as of the
beginning of the measurement period.
Additionally, differences between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments should be
recognized in OPEB expense using a systematic and rational method over a closed five-year period. For
this purpose, the deferred outflows and inflows of resources are recognized in the OPEB expense as a level
dollar amount over the closed period identified above.
The schedules on the following pages reflects the amortization of collective deferred outflows/(inflows) of
resources related to OPEB outstanding at June 30, 2018.
As a reminder, in addition to recognizing a proportionate share of the deferred outflows and inflows shown
on the following page, employers will also need to establish:
a. Deferred outflows and inflows related to changes in proportionate shares and differences
between contributions and proportionate share of contributions;
b. A deferred outflow related to contributions made after the measurement date. This deferred
outflow should include payroll-related surcharge contributions and implicit subsidies.
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
SCRS
Difference between expected and actual experience

$

Difference between projected and actual investment experience

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
SCRS

222,919

$

5,185

57,058

-

Assumption changes

-

1,211,736

Changes in proportion and differences between contributions and
proportionate share of contributions

-

41,516

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total

$
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Difference between expected and actual experience
SCRHITF
June 30, 2018
$
217,734
Initial Balance (Inflow)/Outflow
1

Amortization period

7.2030

2

Amortized period ending June 30,
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

$

30,228
30,228
30,228
30,228
30,228
30,228
36,366

Assumption changes

$

Initial Balance (Inflow)/Outflow
3

Amortization period

SCRHITF
June 30, 2018
(1,211,736)
7.2030

2

Amortized period ending June 30,
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

42

$

168,227
168,227
168,227
168,227
168,227
168,227
202,374
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Difference between projected and actual investment earnings
SCRHITF
June 30, 2018
Initial Balance (Inflow)/Outflow
$
57,058
3

Amortization period

5.0000

2

Amortized period ending June 30,
2018
$
2019
2020
2021
2022

11,412
11,412
11,412
11,412
11,410

Additional Financial and Actuarial Information
Information contained in these Notes to the Schedules of OPEB Amounts by Employer (the Schedules)
were compiled from the OPEB Trust Funds audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018, and the accounting and financial reporting actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2018. Additional
financial information supporting the preparation of the Schedules (including the unmodified audit opinion
on the financial statements and required supplementary information) is available in the OPEB Trust Funds
audited financial statements. Employers are encouraged to review Illustration II in Appendix C of GASB
Statement No. 75, which provides a sample footnote disclosure and required supplementary information
for a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan.
NOTE 12 CONTINGENCIES, LITIGATIONS, AND PROJECT COMMITMENTS
The College has legal litigation from time to time. Most of the litigation is covered by insurance or settled
through subsequent agreements. In the opinion of the College the resolution of these matters will not have
a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the College. The College is not aware of any other
pending claims or litigation that would affect the College’s financial position.
The College participates in certain Federal grant programs. These programs are subject to financial and
compliance audits by the grantor or its representative. The College is not aware of any contingent liabilities
related to the Federal grant programs.
At June 30, 2019, the College had an outstanding commitment for architectural services related to a culinary
lab renovation at the New River campus. A contract was entered into for $48,075, with a balance of
$14,500 remaining at June 30, 2019.
At June 30, 2019, the College had an outstanding commitment for architectural services related to the
construction of the Culinary Institute of the South facility at Buckwalter Place, Bluffton. A contract was
entered into for $750,750, with a balance of $482,262 remaining at June 30, 2019.
Additionally, the TCL Foundation had an outstanding commitment at June 30, 2019 to purchase a 0.93
acre parcel of land at Buckwalter Place, Bluffton for $675,000, as the site for the Culinary Institute of the
South facility. Please refer to Note 17 Subsequent Events for more information regarding this transaction .
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Operating Leases
The College had an operating lease agreement with Ontario Leasing, Inc. for a Pitney Bowes mail
system. The lease term is for 60 months and commenced on August 1, 2016. The lease agreement
calls for monthly payments of $318.51.
Contingent Rentals
The College leases all copier equipment from external parties. The lease terms are for 60 months and
are payable monthly. The basis for the monthly rental payments is cost per copy. Total rental payments
for copier equipment were $47,855 during fiscal year 2019.
Capital Leases
The College acquired a twenty-five-year capital lease during fiscal year 2007 related to the development
of the New River Campus. Beaufort County leases the facilities to the College at a nominal rate of $10
per year. Under the terms of the lease, the College is responsible for all maintenance and operational
costs. The lease term of twenty-five years could be reduced with an earlier retirement of Beaufort
County’s Tax Increment Financing (TIF) bonds. The minimum lease payments are calculated with an
implicit rate of 4.25%.
The future minimum lease payments under the lease obligation are as follows:
Lease Payments Due
to External Parties

For the year ending
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025-2030

$

Total future minimum lease payments
Less: interest portion

10
10
10
10
10
60
110
(41)

Lease obligation outstanding

$

69

Land
Land Improvements
Buildings

$

2,141,399
2,449,304
5,767,869

Total assets acquired under capital lease
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

$ 10,358,572
(3,581,425)

Assets acquired under capital lease, net

$

Assets acquired under capital lease:
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TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
NOTE 14 RELATED ORGANIZATIONS, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS, AND
TRANSACTIONS WITH DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
Certain separately chartered legal entities whose activities are related to those of the College exist
primarily to provide financial assistance and other support to the College and its educational program.
Financial statements for these entities are audited by independent auditors and retained by them. They
include the Technical College of the Lowcountry Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation). The activities of
this entity are not included in the College’s financial statements. However, the College’s statements
include transactions between the College and this related party.
Management reviewed its relationship with the Foundation under the existing guidance of GASB
Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statements No. 39 and No. 61. The College excluded this
organization from the reporting entity because it is not financially accountable for it, and the assets of
the Foundation are not significant to the College’s overall assets.
Following is a more detailed discussion of the Foundation and a summary of significant transactions
between the Foundation and the College for the year ended June 30, 2019.
The Technical College of the Lowcountry Foundation, Inc.
The Foundation is a separately chartered corporation organized exclusively to receive and manage
private funds for the exclusive benefit and support of the Technical College of the Lowcountry. Its
Board of Directors governs the Foundation’s activities.
The College received scholarships for books and stipends totaling $110,232 from the Foundation in
operating revenues for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. The Foundation reimburses the College
for any purchases made by the College on behalf of the Foundation. The College also provides office
space to the Foundation. The value of this office space was approximately $9,600 for the year ended
June 30, 2019. The College does not provide administrative services to the Foundation.
The net position of the TCL Foundation was $1,759,249 at June 30, 2019. $6,752 was due to the
College from the TCL Foundation as of June 30, 2019.
NOTE 15 RISK MANAGEMENT
The College is exposed to various risks of loss and maintains State or commercial insurance coverage
for each of those risks. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant
uninsured losses for the covered risks. Settlement claims have not exceeded this coverage in any of the
past three years.
The State of South Carolina believes it is more economical to manage certain risks internally and set
aside assets for claim settlement. Several state funds accumulate assets and the State itself assumes
substantially all the risk for the following claims of covered employees:
Unemployment compensation benefits
Worker’s compensation benefits for job-related illnesses or injuries
Health and dental insurance benefits
Long-term disability and incidental death benefits
Employees elect health insurance coverage through either a health maintenance organization or through
the State’s self-insured plan.
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NOTE 15 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
The College and other entities pay premiums to the State’s Insurance Reserve Fund (IRF), which issues
policies, accumulates assets to cover the risk of loss, and pays claims incurred for covered losses
relating to the following activities:
Theft, damage to, or destruction of assets
Real property, its contents, and other equipment
Motor vehicles
Torts
Natural disasters
Medical malpractice claims against the Infirmary
The IRF is a self-insurer and purchases reinsurance to obtain certain services and to limit losses in
certain areas. The IRF’s rates are determined actuarially.
The College obtains coverage through a commercial insurer for employee’s fidelity bond insurance for
all employees for losses arising from theft or misappropriation.
NOTE 16 OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTION
Operating expenses by functional classification for the year ended June 30, 2019 are summarized as
follows:
Instruction
Academic Support
Student Services
Operation & Maintenance
of Plant
Institutional Support
Scholarships
Auxiliary Enterprises
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Compensation
$
4,865,234
1,439,701
1,313,173

$

452,711
1,495,175
149,639
9,715,633

$

$

Benefits
1,976,451
599,992
637,705
242,765
454,221
58,763
3,969,897

Scholarships
$

$

2,388,946
2,388,946
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$

$

Supplies/serv.
824,335
750,842
835,257
588,063
1,204,350
777,429
4,980,276

Utilities
$

$

-

Depreciation
$
-

544,123
7,774
551,897

1,148,608
1,148,608

$

$

$

Total
7,666,020
2,790,535
2,786,135
1,827,662
3,153,746
2,388,946
993,605
1,148,608
22,755,257

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
NOTE 17 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The College has evaluated subsequent events through September 27, 2019, in connection with the
preparation of the financial statements, which is the date the financial statements were available to be
issued:
The TCL Foundation entered into an agreement with the College to act as a conduit for the construction
and financing of a Culinary Arts Institute and Interpretive Center in Bluffton, South Carolina in the amount
of $11,243,000. The financing of which has been secured by an $8 million South Carolina Jobs-Economic
Development Agreement (JEDA) Economic Development Revenue Bond through BB&T, along with (1)
approximately $1,243,000 of local hospitality taxes contributed from Beaufort County and (2)
approximately $2,000,000 of the College’s capital reserves. The Bond is payable in ten annual installments
of approximately level payments, and is payable from and secured by (a) amounts annually provided by
Beaufort County, the Town of Bluffton and the Beaufort County School District (as described below) and
(b) approximately $2,000,000 of local hospitality taxes previously contributed from Beaufort County and
deposited to a bond reserve fund.
Beaufort County, on behalf of itself and as fiscal agent for the Town of Bluffton and the Beaufort County
School District, has committed to annually provide $800,000 in available revenues over a ten-year period
(for a total of $8 million), subject to annual appropriations, to the College. Pursuant to a lease between the
College and the TCL Foundation, the College has agreed to make ten annual lease payments equal to
$800,000 (for a total of $8 million), subject to annual appropriation, which lease payments are intended to
be used by the TCL Foundation for repayment of the Bond. The College has agreed to undertake the
construction and the financial administration of the project.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the SCRS Net Pension Liability
Last 10 Fiscal Years

TCL Proportion of Net Pension
Liability

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

0.084174%

0.084763%

0.085300%

0.087397%

0.086284%

0.086284%

TCL Proportioante Share of Net
Pension Liability

$ 18,860,726

$ 19,081,514

$ 18,219,954

$ 16,575,262

$ 14,855,244

$ 15,476,272

TCL Covered Employee Payroll

$ 9,055,859

$ 8,883,071

$ 8,624,879

$ 9,533,240

$ 9,144,015

$ 8,267,116

TCL Proportionate Share of Net
Pension Liability as a Percentage of
Covered Employee Payroll
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of the Total Pension
Liability

208.27%

214.81%

211.25%

173.87%

162.46%

187.20%

54.10%

53.30%

52.90%

56.99%

59.92%

56.39%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determinded as of July 1 of four years prior, using membership data
as of that day, projected forward to June 30 of the previous year. Additionally, the State implemented GASB 68 during
fiscal year 2015. As such, only the last five years of information is available.
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Schedule of SCRS Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years
Last 10 Fiscal Years

Contractually Required Contribution

2019

2018

$ 1,234,900

$ 1,183,275

Contributions in Relation to the
Contractally Required Contribution

(1,234,900)

Contribution Deficiency/(Excess)

$

TCL Covered Employee Payroll

$ 8,896,166

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered-Employee Payroll

-

$

(1,183,275)
$

-

$ 9,055,859

13.88%

Contributions in Relation to the
Contractally Required Contribution

-

$ 8,883,071

$

Contribution Deficiency/(Excess)

$

-

TCL Covered Employee Payroll

$ 9,288,451
8.62%

865,610

$

-

$ 8,624,879

$

$

-

$ 9,261,324
7.70%

-

$ 9,533,240

$

$

$

-

8.69%

$ 9,278,009
7.72%

2009

728,770

$

(728,770)
$

-

$ 9,144,015

2010

716,255

794,980

(794,980)

9.37%

(716,255)
$

893,244

$

2011

713,164

2014

(893,244)

10.04%

(713,164)
$

2015

(865,610)

11.14%

(800,641)
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$

2012

800,641

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered-Employee Payroll

989,178

$

2013
$

2016

(989,178)

13.07%

cont.
Contractually Required Contribution

2017

-

$ 9,337,510
7.80%

730,205

(730,205)
$

-

$ 9,010,179
8.10%

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2019

2018

Total OPEB Liability

50

Service cost at the end of the year
Interest on the TOL and Cash Flows
Projected earnings on plan investments
OPEB plan administrative expense
Other changes in plan fiduciary net position
Recognition of outflows (inflows) of resources due to liabilities
Deferred amounts from changes in porportionate share and difference between
employer contribution & proportionate share of total plan contributions
Implicit subsidy
Contributions from nonemployer contributiing entities
5.50% Surcharge Contribution
Net change in difference between expected and actual experience
Net change in difference between projected and actual investment experience
Net change in changes of assumption or other inputs
Net changes in changes in proportion and differences between contributions
and proportionate share of contributions
Net change in Total OPEB Liability

$

Total OPEB Liability - beginning
Total OPEB Liability - ending

$ 14,267,995
$ 14,880,673

$ 15,241,111
$ 14,267,995

$

$

Covered Payroll
Total OPEB Liability as a percentage of covered payroll

$

547,288
549,063
(48,952)
68
(193,456)
15,792

$

643,456
479,604
(44,824)
11
(215,937)
6,129

(6,699)
13,983
(112,308)
(498,072)
223,926
32,542
130,816

18,087
(1,859,642)

(41,313)
612,678

(973,116)

9,055,859
164.32%

$

8,883,071
160.62%

Until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the Board will present information for those years for which information is available.

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
Schedule of OPEB Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years

Description
Acturarially Determined Employer Contribution (ADEC)
Contributions in relation to the ADEC
Annual contribution deficiency (excess)

2019
$ 538,217
$ 538,217

2018
$ 498,073
$ 498,073

2017
$ 473,468
$ 473,468

Covered Payroll*

$ 8,896,166

$ 9,055,859

$ 8,883,071

Actual contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

6.0%

5.5%

5.3%

*For years following the valuation date (when no new valuation is performed), covered payroll has been set equal to the covered payroll from the
most recent valuation.
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COMPLIANCE SECTION

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance

Federal
CFDA
Number

Pass-Through
Entity Identifying
Number

97.036
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U.S. Department of Education
Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster
Federal Work-Study Program
Federal Supplemental Education and Opportunity Grants
Federal Pell Grant Program
Federal Direct Student Loans
Total Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster
Strengthening Minority Serving Institutions
Predominantly Black Institution Grant - Formula Grant
TRIO Program Cluster
Student Support Services
Talent Search
Total TRIO Program Cluster
Passed through S.C. Department of Education
Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs
Perkins IV

Pass-Through
to SubRecipients

Total Federal
Expenditures

$

$

-

16,045

84.033
84.007
84.063
84.268

-

72,506
160,504
3,652,000
1,690,406
5,575,416

84.031

-

540

84.042
84.044

-

366,593
397,648
764,241

84.334
84.048

-

10,410
144,364

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through S.C. Department of Social Services
SNAP Employment and Training Program

10.561

-

57,945

Department of Health and Human Services
Early Childhood Development

93.575

-

9,445

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

$

See accompanying notes to schedule of federal expenditures.

-

$

6,578,406

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal
award activity of Technical College of the Lowcountry (the College) under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in the schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the College, it
is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of
the College.
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles contained in Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards or OMB Circular A-21 - Cost Principles for
Educational Institutions, wherein certain types of expenditures may or may not be allowable or may
be limited as to reimbursement.
NOTE 3 -INDIRECT COST RATE
The amount expended includes $64,294 claimed as an indirect cost recovery using an approved
indirect cost rate. The College has elected not to use the 10% de Minimis indirect cost rate as allowed
under the Uniform Guidance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
To the Board of Commissioners
Technical College of the Lowcountry
Beaufort, South Carolina
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities of the Technical College of the Lowcountry, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Technical College of the
Lowcountry’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 27, 2019.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Technical College of
the Lowcountry’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Technical College of the Lowcountry’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Technical College of the Lowcountry’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Technical College of the Lowcountry’s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Crowley Wechsler & Associates LLC
Beaufort, South Carolina
September 27, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE
To the Board of Commissioners
Technical College of the Lowcountry
Beaufort, South Carolina
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited the Technical College of the Lowcountry’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of the Technical College of the Lowcountry’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2019. Technical College of the Lowcountry’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Technical College of the
Lowcountry’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and
the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the Technical College of the Lowcountry’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Technical College of
the Lowcountry’s compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the Technical College of the Lowcountry, complied, in all material respects, with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.
Other Matters
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2019-001. Our opinion on each major federal program
is not modified with respect to these matters.
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The College’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The College’s response was not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.
Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of the Technical College of the Lowcountry, is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Technical College of the
Lowcountry’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Technical College of
the Lowcountry’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The College’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The College’s response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Crowley Wechsler & Associates LLC
Beaufort, South Carolina
September 27, 2019

57

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued:

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Yes

X No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Yes

X No

Yes

X No

Yes

X No

Yes

No

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?
X
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs:

Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516 (a)?
X

Yes

No

Identification of Major Programs:
CFDA Number
84.007, 84.033, 84.063, 84.268
84.044, 84.042

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Student Financial Assistance Cluster
TRIO Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:

$750,000

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee?

No

X

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
NONE
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Yes

TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
US Department of Education
Program Name: Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster
CFDA 84.033, 84.007, 84.063, 84.268
Finding 2019-001
Criteria: In accordance with the grant contract, the requirement applicable in this case, is to make
payments in accordance with policies and compliance requirements outlined in the 2019 OMB
Compliance Supplement.
Condition: One instance in which a CWS student had a recorded grant award of $960 for hours worked,
but timecards amounted to $945, and the student was only paid $925.
Questioned Costs: Questioned costs not considered material and below reporting threshold.
Context: Only one CWS student was selected for testing, and error was projected across all CWS
population.
Effect: Student was underpaid, and amount awarded did not match the supporting documentation,
resulting in an inaccurate award.
Cause: Staff was making manual payroll entries into the financial aid software.
Recommendation: Staff should routinely review student records made into computer system for FAFSAs
(Free Application for Federal Student Aid).
Management Response: The College has switched to an automated system in which the payroll is linked
to the grant award program, so no more manual entries are being made as of the end of 2018. The student
was reimbursed the balance of $20 on July 15, 2019.
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TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2019

Summary of Auditors’ Results
1. The independent auditors’ report expressed an unmodified opinion.
2. There was no financial statement finding in the audit of the financial statements.

Financial Statement Findings
None
Compliance Findings
Finding 2018-001
Condition: Two instances in which two males were awarded grants and were not registered for selective
service.
Status: These individuals were subsequently investigated and found to be in compliance with selective
service registration requirements. All findings related to 2018-001 were cleared.
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TECHNICAL COLLEGE OF THE LOWCOUNTRY
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

US Department of Education
Program Name: Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster
CFDA 84.033, 84.007, 84.063, 84.268
Finding Number: 2019–001
___ Repeat Finding ___ Material Weakness _X_ Questioned Cost _X_ Significant Deficiency
Description of Finding: One instance in which a CWS student had a recorded grant award of $960
for hours worked, but timecards amounted to $945, and the student was only paid $925.
Questioned Costs: Questioned costs not considered material and below reporting threshold.
Did you, as the Recipient agree with this finding?
We are in agreement with the finding as noted.
If No, provide an explanation and specific reasons for the non-concurrence.
Planned Corrective Action Plan:
The College has switched to an automated system in which the payroll is linked to the grant award
program, so no more manual entries are being made as of the end of 2018.
Due Date to Complete the Implementation of the Corrective Action Plan:
The automatic system was implemented in 2018 after the error had occurred.
Accountable Official’s Name: Hayes Wiser
Signature:
Date: 9/27/19
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